
 If you need us to do anything differently (reasonable adjustments) to help you 
access our services, including providing this information in another language or 
format, please contact democraticsupport@northtyneside.gov.uk 

 

 
 

 

Standards Sub-
committee 

 
Friday, 22 September 2023 
 
Thursday, 28 September 2023 3.09 - Quadrant, Cobalt Business Park, Silverlink 
North, North Tyneside, NE27 0BY commencing at 10.00 am. 

 
Agenda 

Item 
 

 Page 
 

 
1.   Apologies for Absence 

 
To receive apologies for absence from the meeting. 
 

 

 
2.   Appointment of Substitute Members 

 
To be notified of the appointment of any Substitute Members. 
 

 

 
3.   Declarations of Interest 

 
You are invited to declare any registerable and/or non-
registerable interests in matters appearing on the agenda, and 
the nature of that interest. 
 
Please complete the Declarations of Interests card available at 
the meeting and return it to the Democratic Services Officer 
before leaving the meeting. 
 
You are also invited to disclose any dispensation from the 
requirement to declare any registerable and/or non-
registerable interests that have been granted to you in respect 
of any matters appearing on the agenda. 

 

Public Document Pack



Agenda 
Item 

 

 Page 

 
 

 

  
4.   Exclusion Resolution 

 
The Standards Sub-committee is requested to consider 
passing the following resolution: 
  
“That under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972 
(as amended) and having applied a public interest test as 
defined in Part 2 of Schedule 12A of the Act, the press and 
public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of 
business on the grounds that they involved the likely disclosure 
of exempt information as defined in Paragraphs 1 of Part 1 of 
Schedule 12A to the Act.” 
 

 

 
5.   Code of Conduct for Members' and Co-opted Members - 

Complaint NT09.2022-23 
 

1 - 42 

Circulation overleaf …



 

 
 

Members of the Standards Sub-committee  
 

Councillor Frank Lott (Chair) Councillor Lewis Bartoli 
Councillor Eddie Darke  

 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



North Tyneside Council
Report to Standards Sub-Committee
Date:  28 September 2023

Report Authors: Stephen Ballantyne,
Head of Law and Monitoring Officer

(0191) 643 
5329

Wards affected: All

1.0 Purpose of Report

1.1 To present a report of the Investigating Officer in relation to an alleged breach of the 
Members’ Code of Conduct in relation to Complaint NT09.2022-23.

2.0 Recommendation(s)

(1)  The Standards Sub-Committee is required to decide whether the Member, against 
whom the allegations have been made, has breached the Code of Conduct; and

        
(2)  If a breach is found, to determine what, if any, sanction should be imposed.

3.0 Information

3.1 The Standards Sub-Committee is required to consider the completed investigation report 
from the Investigating Officer in respect of the following complaint: NT09.2022-23.

3.2 In considering the Investigating Officer’s report the Sub-Committee will be required to 
determine whether or not the Member has failed to follow the Council’s adopted 
Members’ Code of Conduct and, if so, what penalty should be applied, if any.

3.3 The Sub-Committee should act in an inquisitorial manner, rather than an adversarial 
manner, seeking the truth in relation to the conduct of the Member on the balance of the 
information available to it, and may commission further investigation or information if it 
needs to do so in order to come to a decision.  The Sub-Committee’s role is governed by 
the Authority’s Local Arrangements for dealing with Complaints against Members.

3.4 Attached as Appendix A is the Procedure to be followed for the Hearing.

3.5 Attached as Appendix B is the Pre-Hearing Process Summary in relation to complaint 
NT09.2022-23.

3.6 Attached as Appendix C is the Investigating Officer’s reports in relation to Complaint 
NT09.2022-23.

ITEM 2

Title: Standards 
Committee Hearing into 
Allegation of Breach of 
the Members’ Code of 
Conduct

Page 1

Agenda Item 5



4.0 Appendices (if any)

Appendix A - Hearing Procedure
Appendix B - Pre-Hearing Process Summary 
Appendix C - Investigating Officer’s Report

5.0 Background Information

North Tyneside Council Constitution
North Tyneside Council Members’ Code of Conduct

Page 2



Page 3



Page 4



Page 5



Page 6



Page 7



Page 8



Page 9



Page 10



NORTH TYNESIDE COUNCIL STANDARDS SUB-COMMITTEE

PRE-HEARING PROCESS SUMMARY

     
Member subject of allegation:   Councillor Liam Bones

Complainant(s): Mr Jim Allan  

Case Reference Numbers:   NT09.2022-23  

Chair for meeting:     Councillor F Lott

Independent Persons:    Dr S Green, Mr D Entwisle, Mrs K Roffe

Monitoring Officer:     Mr Stephen Ballantyne

Investigating Officer: Mr Colin Jones

Democratic Services Officer:   Ms Joanne Holmes   

Time, Date and Place of Hearing: To be confirmed following consultation with 
the Chair 
   

Time, Date and Place of Pre-Hearing   11.00a.m. Friday 25 August 2023, Quadrant
Process Summary Meeting:                  East, the Silverlink North, Cobalt Business Park

Summary of allegation:

The complainant, Mr Jim Allan, alleges that:

a. Councillor Liam Bones in a Facebook post and on a website operated by him posted 
a story about Mr Allan containing inaccuracies. He also alleges that Councillor Bones 
has used “privileged information” only available to him as a Councillor. 

b. Councillor Bones failed to show Mr Allan respect when he stated on social media that 
Mr Allan failed to undertake his office of Councillor when in fact Mr Allan was suffering 
from ill health. Mr Allan said that was a lie. Mr Allan said that despite his illness, he 
continued to undertake casework and attended online meetings and was only unable 
to attend “in person” meetings. Councillor Bones it is said either chose to ignore his 
personal circumstances or published the story complained about without knowing Mr 
Allan’s circumstances. This it is said was an attempt to “degrade” Mr Allan’s character 
and record in the Camperdown ward.  

c. Councillor Bones used information that was confidential and only available to him 
because he was a Councillor. Mr Allan says that Councillor Bones published the story 
about him on his website and on Facebook when it was not publicly known the reason 
for the by-election. The Notice of Election on the Council website simply stated that 
there was to be a by-election in the Camperdown ward. Mr Allan presumes that 
Councillor Bones knew the reason for the by-election through discussions that he had 
with Council officers which was of a confidential nature. 

Page 11



d. Councillor Bones’ post was deceitful and dishonest and suggested that Mr Allan was 
not undertaking work as a Councillor when Councillor Bones had no knowledge of 
what he was doing in that regard. Mr Allan said that he could provide countless bits of 
evidence of the casework undertaken by him over a 6-month period including 
correspondence with different community groups in the ward. Mr Allan also said that 
he attended Microsoft Teams meetings including ward briefings. It was both deceitful 
and dishonest to suggest that Mr Allan was not “doing his job” and that he was paid 
over £150,000 in allowances during his time on the Council for doing nothing, which is 
fundamentally dishonest. 

e. Councillor Bones’ use of Councillor Allan’s official Council photograph in the article 
posted by him was a use of Council resources for political purposes. 

Relevant Paragraph(s) of the Code of Conduct

The relevant paragraphs of the Code are: 

Part 1 – General Conduct

1. Respect 

As a member:

1.1 You must treat other members and members of the public with respect.

4. Confidentiality and access to exempt information

4.1 You must not disclose information:

a) given to you in confidence by anyone

b) acquired by you which you believe, or ought reasonably to believe, is of a confidential 
nature, unless -
i. you have received the consent of a person authorised to give it;
ii. you are required by law to do so;
iii. the disclosure is made to a third party for the purposes of obtaining professional legal 
advice provided that the third party agrees not to disclose the information to any other 
person; or
iv. the disclosure is:

a. reasonable and in the public interest; and
b. made in good faith and in compliance with the reasonable requirements of the 
Authority; and
c. you have consulted with the Monitoring Officer prior to its release.

4.2 You must not use knowledge gained solely as a result of your role as a member for the 
advancement of yourself, your friends, your family members, your employer, or your 
business interests.

Page 12



5. Disrepute

As a member: 

5.1 You must not do anything to bring your role or the Authority into disrepute.

7. Use of the Authority’s resources and facilities

As a member:

7.1 You must not misuse the Authority’s resources.

7.2 You must, when using the Authority’s resources or authorising their use by others: -
a. Act in accordance with the Authority’s requirements; and
b. ensure that such resources are not used for political purposes unless that use could 
reasonably be regarded as likely to facilitate, or be conducive to, the discharge of the 
functions of the Authority or of the office to which you have been elected or appointed.

Findings of fact in the Investigating Officer’s report that are disagreed with

Councillor Bones wholly disputes the findings of the report. He states that he has no 
confidence in the impartiality of the Standards Committee, which is made up mainly of 
Labour councillors. He therefore assumes that he will be found “guilty regardless”. 

Appendix 1 is an extract of the Investigator’s Report which sets out Councillor Bones’ 
comments on the findings of the Independent Investigator’s findings.

Councillor Bones has not provided completed Forms A to E which are model response forms 
provided for subject members who wish to challenge the findings of an Investigating Officer. 

FORM A - Subject Member’s response to the evidence set out in the Investigation Report
FORM B - Other evidence relevant to the allegation
FORM C - Representations to be taken into account if a Member is found to have failed to 

follow the Council’s Code of Conduct
FORM D - Arrangements for the Standards Committee Hearing
FORM E - Details of proposed witnesses to be called.

A summary of findings is contained in Section 2 of the Investigation Report.

Application of the Code of Conduct

The Independent Investigator considered that the article written by Councillor Bones did 
engage him in business directly related to the Council and the constituents and therefore the 
Code of Conduct was engaged. His view is that the Government’s intention when drafting the 
Localism Act would be undermined if Councillors were permitted to make comments about 
Councils or fellow Councillors or officers, however disrespectful or misleading, and not be 
subject to the Code of Conduct by simply failing to identify themselves explicitly as a 
Councillor when making those comments. (paras 3.6.1 and 3.6.2). 

Page 13



Treating Others With Respect

The Investigator found that Councillor Bones has breached the Code in relation to:

Part 1 – General Conduct, Paragraph 1 and the need to treat others with respect, including 
Authority officers and other elected members. (para 2.1.1).

The Use of Confidential Information

The Investigator found that Councillor Bones has not breached the Code in relation to:

Part 1- General Conduct, Paragraph 4 and the prohibition on disclosing information given to 
a Member in confidence by anyone and/or not using knowledge gained solely as a result of 
the role of Councillor for the advancement of the Member, their friends, their family, their 
employer or their business interests. (para 2.1.2).  

Bringing the Authority into Disrepute

The Investigator found that Councillor Bones has breached the Code in relation to:

Part 1 – General Conduct, Paragraph 5 and Members not doing anything to bring their role or 
the Authority into disrepute. (para 2.1.3).

Use of Authority Resources

The Investigator found that Councillor Liam Bones has not breached the Code in relation to:

Part 1- General Conduct, Paragraph 7 and Members not being permitted to use the 
Authority’s resources and facilities.

Matters taken into account by the Investigating Officer:

- Councillor Bones did not dispute that he was the author of the article in question. (para 
6.1.1).

- The Investigator’s reading of the article in which it was suggesting that former 
Councillor Allan had claimed £150,000 without attending any Council meetings. (para 
6.1.1)

- That due to health reasons, Councillor Allan had not attended formal meetings of the 
council in the months leading up to June 2022 and as no mitigating action had been 
taken either by Mr Allan or the Council, he had been automatically disqualified as an 
elected member in line with the legal requirements under the Local Government 
Act 1972 (para 6.1.1)

- Looking through the Council’s website it is clear that Councillor Allan had attended 
many Council meetings prior to becoming poorly. (para 6.1.1)

- The Heesom v Public Ombudsman of Wales decision, and the reference therein to 
an enhanced freedom of expression being afforded to politicians pursuant to Article 10 
of the European Convention of Human Rights was considered when balancing that 
right against the Code of Conduct and the need to show respect (paras 6.1.3 to 
6.1.14.

- Article 10 does not protect statements (or articles) which the publisher knows to be 
false. (para 6.1.12).

Page 14



- Members attendance at Council meetings is recorded on the Council’s website and so 
is publicly available. (para 6.2.1.2)

- Information about Members allowances is published on the Council’s website and is 
easily accessible for members of the public or could be obtained by use of a Freedom 
of Information request. (para 6.2.1.4)

- The LGA Guidance in relation to “disrepute” and the definition of disrepute given in the 
Guidance. (para 6.2.3).

Attendance at the hearing (including representatives)

It is unknown if Councillor Bones will be present at the hearing or if a representative will be 
appointed to act on his behalf. 

Mr Colin Jones, the Independent Investigating Officer, will be present at the hearing in order 
to present his report.  

Witnesses Attending

It is unknown if Councillor Bones intends to call witnesses. 

The Investigating Officer has not requested the attendance of any witnesses. 

Hearing Procedure:

The full procedure for the Hearing as agreed by the Chair is attached.

In summary, the Hearing will progress through the following stages and will include the 
consideration of any comments made by the Authority’s appointed Independent Persons, as 
appropriate: -

1.) Introductions and preliminary procedural issues including consideration of any 
requests for the hearing to be held in full or in part in private.

2.) Pre-Hearing Process Summary.
3.) Presentation of Investigating Officers Report including witnesses.
4.) The Members response including witnesses.
5.) Withdrawal of Committee to determine Findings of Fact, whether a breach has 

occurred and any sanction to be imposed.

In relation to point 1 above, the Hearing will be advised of email correspondence from the 
Councillor Bones received on 24 August 2023.  In that correspondence Councillor Bones 
suggested that the complaint against him was out of time because the hearing of the 
complaint had not been concluded within 3 months of the completed investigation report 
being provided to him.  The report had been sent to him on 23 May 2023.  In making this 
suggestion Councillor Bones referred to a provision in the Authority’s Local Arrangements 
document at page 36.  This correspondence was shared with the Chair at the Pre-Hearing 
Process meeting and will be shared with the Standards Committee/Sub-Committee at the 
hearing.

In the Pre-Hearing Process meeting the Monitoring Officer referred to the correspondence 
that had been undertaken between his Office and Councillor Bones during the period from 
the completion of the report up to and including the day immediately before the Pre-Hearing 
Process meeting in relation to receiving from Councillor Bones his response to the 

Page 15



Investigation report and the completion of Forms A to E and to the extensions in time to 
provide that information which had been afforded to Councillor Bones.  

The Monitoring Officer advised the Chair that the Local Arrangements document provided 
that the Pre-Hearing process was predicated on engagement by the subject member of the 
complaint.  In particular, on Page 35 it provided that “Upon the receipt of responses, the 
Monitoring Officer will discuss the responses with the Chair of Standards Committee and will 
complete the Pre-Hearing process”.  It was noted that the Arrangements document expected 
a response from the Subject Member and the completion of Forms A to E within 14 days of 
the completed Investigation report being provided to them. Of course, Members are also 
required in accordance with the Paragraph 8 of the General Conduct section of the Code to 
co-operate not just with any investigation but also enabling a matter to proceed to a hearing. 

The Monitoring Officer advised the Chair that the Local Arrangements and the process set 
out therein and adopted by the Authority aims to be fair to both the Subject Member and the 
Complainant and must comply with the rules of natural justice so as to ensure a fair hearing 
is undertaken.  This was why additional time had been provided to Councillor Bones to 
provide the information requested.

Furthermore, the Monitoring Officer explained that the Council had also received 
correspondence from Mr Allan, the Complainant in this matter.  Mr Allan had expressed his 
concern at the time this matter was taking to proceed to a final hearing.  He indicated that the 
delay was causing him further distress and he wished the matter concluded as soon as 
possible.  

In the Pre-Hearing Process meeting the Monitoring Officer also advised the Chair that the 
Local Arrangements document specifically provided on Page 8 at Paragraph 15 the following:

“The Standards Committee/Sub-Committee, on the advice of the Monitoring Officer, may 
depart from these arrangements where it is necessary to do so in order to secure the 
effective and fair consideration of any matter.”

Furthermore, that Paragraph 8 of the Code of Conduct placed an obligation on all Members 
of the Council to “cooperate with any Code of Conduct investigation and/or determination”.

The Chair noted the situation.  

In the light of the circumstances detailed above the Monitoring Officer advised the Chair that 
he was of the view that it would be improper if the complaint against Councillor Bones did not 
proceed to a hearing just because it had not been heard within three months of the 
completion of the investigation report, bearing in mind the delay in progressing to the Hearing 
had been as a result of extensions in time being provided to Councillor Bones to provide his 
response to the investigation report.  The Chair noted the advice and then determined to 
proceed to undertake the Pre-Hearing review.    

The Chair was advised that when the Standards Committee/Sub-Committee is called to hear 
this matter as a preliminary matter the Committee/Sub-Committee will be apprised of this 
issue and asked to formally depart from the arrangements with respect to the timescale to 
allow the hearing to proceed. 

Page 16



Date Pre-Hearing Process Summary Completed: 25 August 2023   

Signed ___________________________

Councillor Frank Lott
Chair of the Standards Committee

Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 1 of 19 
 

Page 23



Page 2 of 19 
 

Introduction 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 24



Page 3 of 19 
 

 

 

 

 

Page 25



Page 4 of 19 
 

Summary of findings  
 

 

 
Councillor Liam Bones has breached the Code

 
 Councillor Liam Bones has not breached the Code

 
Councillor Liam Bones has breached the Code

 
 Councillor Liam Bones has not breached the Code

Page 26



Page 5 of 19 
 

 
Context and key considerations  
 

3.2. 

 
3.3. 

 
3.4. 

 
3.5. 

Livingstone v 
Adjudication Panel for England [2006]

Page 27



Page 6 of 19 
 

 
3.6. Livingstone v Adjudication Panel for England [2006] 

Bartlett v Milton Keynes Council [2008]

 
3.6.1. 

 
3.6.2. 

Page 28



Page 7 of 19 
 

, 

  
 
I therefore conclude that the Code was engaged

 
Approach taken to the investigation  
 

 

 

 

Page 29



Page 8 of 19 
 

Comments on the report  
 

 
 

 

 

 

Page 30



Page 9 of 19 
 

Page 31



Page 10 of 19 
 

Page 32



Page 11 of 19 
 

 

Page 33



Page 12 of 19 
 

Page 34



Page 13 of 19 
 

 
 

Details of specific aspects of the complaint and conclusions  
 

Page 35



Page 14 of 19 
 

Heesom v Public 
Ombudsman of Wales

 

Page 36



Page 15 of 19 
 

 

 

.

Page 37



Page 16 of 19 
 

Heesom v Public Ombudsman of Wales 

did breach the code of 
conduct.

Page 38



Page 17 of 19 
 

has not been a breach of the 
code of conduct

Page 39



Page 18 of 19 
 

role

the authority

did breach 
the code of conduct.

Page 40



Page 19 of 19 
 

not a breach of the code of 
conduct. 

 

Page 41



Page 42


	Agenda
	5 Code of Conduct for Members' and Co-opted Members - Complaint NT09.2022-23

